
I I. CALL TO ORDER
Chair Stephen J. Kerrigan will call the meeting to Order at 6:00 P.M. in the Nashaway Meeting Room
located on the second floor in the Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Lancaster, MA 01523

This Meeting Will Also Be Held Virtually at:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us i 83384384636

Meeting ID: 833 8438 4636
One tap mobile

l6465588656,,83384384636# US (New York)
164693 13860,,83384384636# US

Dial by your location
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1646931 3860 US
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 305 224 1968 US
+1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
+1 689 278 1000 US
+17193594580 US
+1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 360 209 5623 US
+1 386 347 5053 US
+1 507 473 4847 US
+15642172000 US
+1 669 444 9171 US

Meeting ID: 833 8438 4636
Find your local number: https: us02web zoom.us/uJkbyFOLcO 1

Additional materials for Select Board meetings are available at
https://www.ci.Iancaster.ma.us administration-select-board> Meeting Materials.

Residents Have the Ability to Ask Questions via ZOOM.

I ii. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES I
Review and take action on the following Select Board’s Meeting Minutes: December 5, 2022

— ~. -

2

LANCASTER SELECT BOARD
Regular Meeting Agenda — Amended*
Prescott Building — Nashaway Room

Monday, December 19, 2022
6:00 P.M.

In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and

_______ broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV

Page 1 of 3



III. SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS -NONE I

IV. BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS I
7:00 P.M. Joint Meeting with Finance Committee

1. FY2024 Capital Budget Proposals & Planning
2. Project Deferrals
3. Use of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds

V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Opportunity for the public to address their concerns, make comment and offer suggestions on operations or
programs, except personnel matters. Complaints or criticism directed at staff volunteers, or other offlcials
shall not be tolerated.

I VI. TOWN ADMINISTOR REPORT

1. Hiring Updates
a. Town Clerk

2. Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance (DCAMM) Update*
3. Other Departmental Updates

~ VII. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY (Vote may be taken)

1. Special Town Meeting — Finalize Details and discuss or evaluate potential articles including
sponsors & board positions

2. Budget
o General Fund Update
o Recycling Center, Financial Update & Determinations

3. The Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission (ABCC) 2023 Seasonal Population Increase
Estimation Form

4. Discuss resident trespass complaints re: Conservation Commission Chairperson.

~ VIII. APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS -

Appointments
Affordable Housing Trust: Kelly Dolan as Ex Officio Trustee

LANCASTER SELECT BOARD
Regular Meeting Agenda — Amended*
Prescott Building — Nashaway Room

Monday, December 19, 2022
6:00 P.M.

In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and
broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV

Resignations

Page 2 of 3



N
—,

z

LANCASTER SELECT BOARD
Regular Meeting Agenda — Amended*
Prescott Building — Nashaway Room

Monday, December 19, 2022
6:00 P.M.

In accordance with the Open Meeting Law, please be advised that this meeting is being recorded and
broadcast over Sterling-Lancaster Community TV

I IX. LICENSES AND PERMITS (Vote may be taken)

I. Review and take action on the following 2023 Renewal License Applications
• Sandee’s Restaurant — Common Victualler
• Koch Route 2 Toyota Class I and Common Victualler
• B& M Investments dba Modena Motor Group Class I

X. NEW BUSINESS *
*7’/~i~ item is included to aclaiowledge that there may be matters not reasonably anticipated by the chair

XI. COMMUNICATIONS
> Town Offices will be closed on Monday, December 26tI~ (Observed Christmas Holiday) and

Monday, January 2, 2023 (Observed New Year’s Day Holiday)
> Next Select Board Hybrid Meeting will be held on Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 6:00pm
> Miscellaneous Correspondence & Memorandums

XII. ON GOING PROJECTS & OLD BUSINESS

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

Page 3 of 3



II. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES



LANCASTER SELECT BOARD
Regular Meeting Minutes

of Monday, December 5, 2022
Nashaway Meeting Room, 2’~’ Floor, Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Lancaster MA

I. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Stephen J. Kerrigan called the meeting to order at 6:00PM in the Nashaway Meeting
Room located on the second floor in the Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Lancaster, MA. He
advised that the meeting was being recorded via ZOOM, and is being broadcast by Sterling
Lancaster Community Television. Additional materials for Select Board meetings are available at
https ://www.ci.lancaster.ma.us/administration-select-board> Meeting Materials.

Join Zoom Meeting: https: us02web.zoom.usj 81755619261
Meeting ID: 817 5561 9261

Roll call vote taken, Jason A. Allison, present, Alexandra W. Turner, present, Stephen J.
Kerrigan, present. Also present, Kate Hodges, Town Administrator

II. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

Mr. Allison moved to approve the minutes of November 12, 2022, November 14, 2022, and
November 21, 2022. Ms. Turner seconded the motion. Ms. Turner noted that the minutes of
November 12, the day-long meeting with the Finance Committee, should either insert the slides
presented or refer people to where the presentationlmeeting materials might be found. She moved
to amend the minutes to insert, under Section II, after “This meeting was strictly informational; no
deliberation was held and no votes were taken.” the words “Refer to meeting materials found on
Select Board Meeting Materials tab on website.” Mr. Kerrigan seconded the amendment. Mr.
Allison suggested that this was a bad precedent. Ms. Turner stated that the minutes as presented
do not present a “substantive capture.” Mr. Kerrigan stated that plenty of material is available for
every meeting and he would support including this as part of the header for every set of minutes.

Vote taken on amendment. , Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, No; Stephen I
Kerrigan, No; Motion failed. [1-2-0].

Mr. Kerrigan suggested a statement at the top of ongoing minutes stating that additional materials
for the minutes below were available at the website. Ms. Turner moved to adopt this; the motion
failed for lack of a second.

Page 1 of8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 5, 2022

Vote taken on the original motion;, Alexandra W. Turner, No; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I
Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed. [2-1-0]

III. SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS

6:05PM Notice of Public Hearing — Tax Classification for Fiscal Year 2023

Mr. Kerrigan reading the legal notice into the record: In accordance with G.L. c.40, §56,
the Select Board will conduct a Public Hearing on the question ofadoption ofpercentages
of the total tax levy to be borne by each class of real property (residential, commercial,
industrial, open space) and personal property for Fiscal Year 2023. The Hearing will be
held as a hybrid meeting and by Zoom https: us02web.zoom. us / 81755619261 on
Monday, December 5, 2022 at 6:05 P.M All interested parties are invited to attend and
be heard.

Mr. Allison moved to open the aforementioned Public Hearing; Ms. Turner seconded.
Vote taken, Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye;
Motion passed, this Public Hearing is continued. [3-0-0]

Mr. Kerrigan recognized David Manzello, President/Regional Assessor of Regional
Resource Group, Inc. Mr. Manzello presented a packet explaining the Annual Tax
Classification process.

The Fiscal Year 2023 Levy Limit and Amount to be Raised:
The following is a calculation of Lancaster’s estimated levy for fiscal year 2023.
Fiscal Year 2022 Levy $20,305,497
Levy Increase allowed under Prop. 2 V2 507,637
New growth revenue (estimated) 337,710
Fiscal Year 2023 maximum allowable levy 21,150,844
Debt excluded under Prop. 2 12 910,982
Maximum Levy (rounded by tax rate) 22,061,826
Levy Ceiling 32,084,091
Excess levy capacity 805.37

Valuations by Class Before Tax Shift
Major Property Class Valuation Percent Res vs CIP% Prior FY %
Residential $1,114,280,987 86.8250 86.8250% 85.6565
Commercial $ 87,097,209 6.7866
Industrial $ 44,660,804 3.4800 13.175°o 14.3435
Personal Property $ 37,324,620, 2.9084
TOTAL $1,283,363,620 100 100 100

2 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDeceniber 5, 2022

Tax Rates
Based on the shift factors, the Board of Assessors has calculated the following tax rate needed to
raise the tax levy:

Property Class FY2022 FY2023
Residential $19.45 $17.19
Commercial $19.45 $17.19
Industrial $19.45 $17.19
Personal Property $19.45 $17.19

The Assessors noted that the Fiscal Year 2023 rate is an estimate and may change upon the
Department ofRevenue review.

Tax Impacts
Fiscal Year 2023 residential valuations have increased by 17% compared to assessed values from
last year, reflecting a very aggressive sellers real estate market.

The average residential tax bill calculation will change as follows:
FY2022 Average Single Family Valuation $ 389,200
Taxes at $19.45 per thousand $ 7,569.94
Change 272.14
FY2023 Average Single Family Valuation $ 456,200
Taxes at $17.19 per thousand $ 7,842.08
Change 3.59%

Recommendations
The Board of Assessors recommends that the Select Board adopt a residential shift factor of
1.0000 with a corresponding CIP factor of 1.0000, thereby maintaining the relative shares of
overall tax burden borne by the residential property owners in the past years. Based on the
above assumptions a single tax rate of $17.19/$1000 would be classified for all property
classification. Levying the amount of $22,061,020.63 with excess levy capacity in the
amount of $805.37

Mr. Kerrigan noted that although the tax rate is going down, that values have increased, so
that taxpayers will see a net increase in property taxes, with the average homeowner
seeing an increase of $272.14. Bobbi-Jo Williams, Principal Assessor, noted that part of
the reason that the rate has decreased is that debt service for a school building/renovation
project has been completed. Ms. Turner asked why CIP had declined; Mr. Manzello
replied that this was due to a strong residential market. Mr. Manzello explained that value
of residential real estate grew by about 17%, commercial real estate growth, including
agricultural property, grew more modestly at about 7%. Ms. Turner spoke about potential
for future, but not current, split tax rates and about tax exemptions. She referred to work
done by Barry Bluestone in 2014. Ms. Williams spoke about area towns that have
previously had split tax rates and are now reversing those decisions. Mr. Allison asked
what the relationship was between the vote on this tax rate and current financial/budget
issues.

3 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 5, 2022

Ms. Turner moved that the Lancaster Select Board votes in accordance with M.G.L., Ch.
40, Sec. 56, as amended, the percentage of local tax levy which will be borne by each
class of real and personal property, relative to setting the Fiscal Year 2023 tax rates and
set the Residential Factor at 1.000, with a corresponding CIP shift of 1.000, pending
certification of the Town’s annual tax recap by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue.
Mr. Allison seconded the motion. Vote taken, Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison,
Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed. [3-0-0]

IV. BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS

1. FY24 Budget Updates

a. Draft General Fund Detail Sheets
b. Draft Capital Plan (for discussion at 12/19/22 joint meeting with Finance

Committee)

Ms. Hodges, with Finance Director Cheryl Gariepy, showed a high level view of next
year’s budget, with major changes from this year’s budget only in utility and insurance
costs. They are working on breaking out school versus non-school expenses for better
analysis. Personnel costs are, with a 2.75% cost-of-living increase for Town employees,
anticipated to decline 1.1%, treating non-union and union employees equally. Right now
the budget is carrying an increase for schools of 4-5%. This still leaves a shortfall of about
$614,000. Ms. Hodges talked about the potential numbers if there were an override of
$1.5M that would carry the budget for the next several years, at which point hopefully
there is additional commercial/residential development that would alleviate some of the
burden on homeowners. Ms. Hodges expressed concern that using Free Cash again to
balance the budget would have a serious impact on the Town’s bond rating. Discussion
was held about debt service and potential future debt, and the reasons for insurance
increases. Mr. Allison noted that the current shortfall for FY24 is about $1.2 million and
that without an override, knowing that about $700,000 is due to the School District, drastic
cuts and employee layoffs would be needed. Discussion continued relative to whether or
not commercial/industrial development is or is not helpful to towns.

Ms. Hodges reviewed the current plans for Capital, with requests classified as urgent or
desirable. Department requests/needs total $5.75 million, with some requests having been
deferred for up to ten years. Mr. Kerrigan noted that ARPA funding will not cover even
the urgent requests. Urgent requests total about $2.6 million. No debt or general fund
impact is planned for FY24. Mr. Allison asked for an example of an urgent request. Ms.
Hodges mentioned the old Town Hall, which currently costs significant money to heat, but
there is no funding to upgrade the heating system, and deferring work causes the building
to deteriorate further. Another example is that the bathrooms in the Community Center are
not ADA compliant.

4 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecenther 5, 2022

2. Discussion regarding Planning Board Public Hearing 12/12/22 relative to Citizens’
Petition

The Planning Board will hold a Public Hearing on December 12 to consider the Citizen’s
Petition to reconsider the Enterprise Zoning in North Lancaster. There is some question as
to who is sponsoring this article; in the Planning Board’s posting the Select Board is
identified as the sponsor. Town Counsel is comfortable with a citizen, the Planning Board,
or the Select Board presenting the article. The target date for Special Town Meeting is
January 28, 2023. Ms. Turner said that she has received a letter expressing concern about
having the meeting on a Saturday; she would like to discuss this.

V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Opportunity for the public to address their concerns, make comments, and offer suggestions on
operations or programs, except personnel matters. Complaints or criticism directed at staff
volunteers, or other officials shall not be permitted.

Mr. Kerrigan recognized Rob Zidek, 103 Kaleva Road. Mr. Zidek brought up the probability of
having both a 40R and a 40B, or having neither one, as part of the North Lancaster development.
He states that the best solution would be to have neither a 40B or a 40R. Mr. Kerrigan stopped the
comment as being too directed at staff or boards.

Mr. Kerrigan recognized Kendra Dickinson, 402 Oetman Way, speaking as a private citizen. Ms.
Dickinson thanked the Board and Ms. Hodges for providing a large amount of budgetary
information. She talked about prioritizing deferred capital expenses and deferred maintenance.

VI. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT

1. Hiring Updates — Health & Human Services Department, Outreach & Activities
Coordinator

Ms. Hodges welcomed and introduced Catlin Roy, who is a Licensed Social Worker with
many years of experience working with older and disabled adults as well as children and
families.

2. Update & Notification Regarding Grants Received in November

Ms. Hodges thanked IT Director John DiTommaso for working with her on a grant to bring
better Wi-Fi and a dedicated server to the Town Hall. The grant is in the amount of $98,000
and will be received by the end of the calendar year.

3. Other Departmental Updates

The Community Center is now available for rentals for programs such as basketball and
physical fitness. Tags are available at the Police Station for the Giving Tree.

5 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 5, 2022

VII. ADMINISTRATION, BUDGET, AND POLICY

1. Draft/Proposal — Financial Audit Committee (Turner)

Ms. Turner has sent a draft to the Board. She has received some feedback from Board
members and from Ms. Hodges. She has incorporated the changes. This committee would
direct the scope of the Audit, directs the Audit, and reports back to the Board, the Finance
Committee, and to the community. Ms. Turner reports that the Inspector General’s office
recommends this as an “independent lens.” Mr. Kerrigan questioned the role of this committee
in the current cycle; there is currently an Audit underway, and this is the last year of the
contract for the current Auditing firm. Ms. Turner explained that they would work with the
Auditor to understand the function and would present the management letter written by the
Auditors. Mr. Kerrigan is inclined to table this until he has spoken to the Inspector General,
especially because the Audit is in process. Ms. Turner states that this is the ideal time to form
this committee. Ms. Turner moved to Table the Discussion; Mr. Allison seconded. Vote taken,
Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed.
[3-0-0]

The Board took a 3-minute recess at this point.

2. DCAMM Property Update (Town Admin)

Ms. Hodges reported on her meeting with DCAMM last week. Previous materials were
reviewed; Ms. Hodges has loaded all the documents to a shared drive that has been
established with DCAMM. She will be meeting with DCAMM’s Real Estate Planning Vice
President on site next week, followed by a meeting in Ms. Hodges’ office to draft a
preliminary Scope of Work for the Building Assessments and to do an Environmental Phase I
and Phase II. Once these reports are in, then the hope would be that an RFP would be put out
to interested developers relative to what can be done with the property. Those responses
would then be assessed by the Town in the manner that the Board determines. Ms. Hodges
stated that her opinion, shared by MassDevelopment, is that an RFP should not be put out
until the environmental reports are done. She stated that she is concerned that if there is not a
plan in place by Summer of 2023, that taking ownership of the property could present an
astronomical increase to property and liability insurance. Mr. Kerrigan notes that the
disposition of the property needs to be determined by the end of 2023. Ms. Turner stated that
her contact at DCAMM will be able to attend a January Select Board meeting. Mr. Kerrigan
noted that the Board could, while this work is going on, be communicating with neighbors and
abutters.

VIII. APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS

Re-Appointments
Affordable Housing Trust: Debra Williams and Frank Streeter terms to expire June 30, 2024 (two
year term)

6 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 5, 2022

Ms. Turner moved to appoint Debra Williams and Frank Streeter to two-year terms on the
Affordable Housing Trust, terms to expire June 30, 2024. Mr. Allison seconded the motion. Vote
taken, Alexandra W Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye, Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion
passed. /3-0-0]

j IX. LICENSES AND PERMITS

1. Review and take action on the following ABCC licenses for 2023
Michael’s Bridge Diner — Retail License to Sell Wine & Malt and Common Victualler
License

Ms. Turner moved to approve a Retail License to Sell Wine & Malt and Common Victualler
License for Michael’s Bridge Diner for 2023. Mr. Allison seconded. Ms. Turner asked Ms.
Hodges for a copy of the most current alcohol regulations. Vote taken, Alexandra W. Turner,
Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed. [3-0-0]

2. Review and take action on the following 2023 Renewal License Applications

Mr. Allison moved to approve the following licenses for 2023:

1. Cumberland Farms — Common Victualler
2. Dunkin Donuts — Common Victualler
3. Mobile/Exxon — Common Victualler
4. Trolley Stop — Common Victualler
5. Murphy’s Hot Dog Truck — Lunch Cart License
6. Sterling National Country Club — Dispensing Food or Beverages to Members & Guest

of Clubs
7. Crawford Truck Sales, Inc. — Class II
8. F.J.S. Auto, Inc. — Class II
9. Nationwide Auto Recycling, Inc. — Class III and Collector & Dealer of Junk
10. JC Madigan — Class I
11. RBI Motors — Class II
12. Ron Bouchard Auto Sales, Inc. - Honda — Class I and Class II
13. Ron Bouchard Dodge, LLC — KIA — Class I and Class II
14. Ron Bouchard Auto Sales, Inc. - Nissan — Class I and Class II
15. Route 117 Used Auto Parts, Inc. — Class II, Class III and Collector & Dealer of Junk

Ms. Turner seconded. Ms. Turner noted that she has sent questions about some of these to Ms.
Hodges; Ms. Hodges confirmed that she has answered these questions. Vote taken, Alexandra
W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed. [3-0-0]

X. NEW BUSINESS
This item is included to acknowledge matters not reasonably anticipated by the Chair.

Ms. Turner, noting that she is the Town’s representative to the Restoration Advisory Board, has
been made aware that live antique hand grenades have been found in the Oxbow Area

7 of 8



Lancaster Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 5, 2022

(Harvard/Lancaster) and that there has been an increase in magnet fishing in the local area. She
explained that residents who see any unexploded ordinance or any metal scrap that they are not
sure of, that they should report it to the Select Board office or to the Police Department. This
would even apply to antique cannonballs.

XI. COMMUNICATIONS

> Next Select Board Hybrid Meeting will be held on Monday, December 19, 2022 at 6:00pm
> Due to Monday Holidays occurring during the month of January, the Select Board will meet

that month on Tuesday, January 31~1 and Tuesday, January l7~, 2023.

~ XII. ONGOING PROJECTS & OLD BUSINESS

• Liaison Roles, Policies & Appointments — Review Draft Proposal (Turner)
• Public Records Requests Inventory & Handling, Policy Proposals (Turner)

Ms. Turner moved to table the items above and to remove them from the agenda. Mr. Allison
seconded. Vote taken, Alexandra W. Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan,
Aye; Motion passed. [3-0-0]

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Allison moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Turner seconded. Vote taken, Alexandra W.
Turner, Aye; Jason A. Allison, Aye; Stephen I Kerrigan, Aye; Motion passed. [3-0-0]

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen Rocco
Executive Assistant

Alexandra W. Turner, Clerk
Approved on:

8 of 8



III. SCHEDULED APPEARANCES & PUBLIC HEARINGS



IV. BOARDS, COMMITTEES & DEPARTMENT REPORTS



FYZ4-28 Capital Improvement Program
Outlay Plan - General Fund & Enterprise Funds

FY2023 Fderlty)P) Key FY2023 Seeolo. Impost (SI) Key
~Urgent ljfllnhence
LJNeoettotc Expend
LJsetieohle MaIntaIn

Bets Cope Item

General Government
5-1 Intoettetloo earns

A-I Town-wide Technology Fund
A-2 015 Systems

5-2 FeollIelee Admleletreoeo
A-I USA Compliance
A-A PuIldI Im ox- Town 4.11
A-S Building lrnpeoo - Prescott
A-B Sul dln~ lrnpnou - Community Center
A-7 Sulldin mprou- LIbrary
A-B Building Improc- Police Dept
A-0 Build mpnou Fire StatIon (Main

A-ID Build ng lmprou FIre SubstatIons
A-Il Su dIng lmprou- Other FacIlIties

0-3 Kotedee Feolllelee
A-Il Planerounde
A-Il Panke Town Owned
A-13 Other Ettedor Fec ties Memenlel School

54 FeolllUee Other
A-Id FacIlUles- Uehlole Maletenaeoe
AID FeasIbilIty, Unchhentural B DesIgn

B-S Reewuneetuee.leebllley
A-It Speuurce Sustaleehility Fund
A-27 Town IV letrastruotune

Fl Finance Administration
Fl-S Beeae.l
Fl-S TeessureiCelleoten ____________________________
Fl-S Ausesewe
Ft4 Towe clerk

RFFBBKBCI ONLY

FY2P2D

Requeseed Recemmeoded

FP24-20 FY2025 FY2025 FY2027 FY2020 Total Total
5-vetoed I FY24 Deterred Future FY
wqussted Requested P 51 Reooetmeed.d Roqeeuted Baquested Bsqussted Requested Be FY25 0 Frn)eete

50,250 254 0 5, 10040 10,400 00,000 10004 13,250 40,000
54,500 50004 SB 000 d 540 0 4,504

500,000 104,040 50,040 100,040 100,040 100,404 100,000 70,044 444,004
25,000 5 ooo fl 0 5400 5004 5004 5040 5,000 20,000

7,500 7500 7,544
54,000 250,000 250 250,000
75,000 1,504,004 1,304,000 fl 250,004 1,250,004

10000 10000 10,440 10000 44,004
55,000 1.5 000 EI 15000 1 000 10000 10000 10,444 0 40,000

27,500 5 5,540 5 5, 5 22,000 22,004
150,000 000 0 00 000 50004 50000 50, 120,040 120,000
120,000 120 M 0 10044 10044 1 000 10000 40,000 40,000

II
I

t:—— I
90,004 -. - 000 Id 00,004 00,000 50040

- e ‘ ~ i

cc 12,5001

—

Planning & Community Development
FC-1 PlentIes PlolsIon

0-2 StudIes, Fee, teulews, PaId Sue.
0-2 Master Flee

PC-2 SulIdleg S lesoectlens
0-3 Software 0 Su lies
8-4 OIl Corn rents

FC-5 Ktoeomlt Potelo meet
ts studies Feer RevIews Feld Sn.



FY24-28 Capital Improvement Program
Outlay Plan - General Fund & Enterprise Funds

8-6 Other
-4 Consern.tion

8-9 Pond & stream man emant
8-IC Agn Cu tuna fields improcemento

Human Sen’ices
80-2 Rs.Rh& Runs.rs SaL
50-2 Rscrs.Oon
05-3 ptsabll Comsniosian
43-4 Olstsetc.l
HS-5 CO Etd.nsvs.
05-6 Board of ResIsts

Public Safety
P3-S Polls. D.pantsssss

fl-I Police Vehicles
fl-i Public Safety flquipmsnt
fl-I Officer Sstety Gear Replacement
fl-7 Cruiser Laptop Replacement
fl-S S sd Alert Trailer
fl-C Bodn Cameras Replacement

fl-IS Vehicle Cameras Replacement
fl-li Public Gala Com leo Pnaniblll Stud

P5-2 Fir. Dspsssnrsns
fl-I3 Miscellaneous Equipment
fl-I4 Pine Vehicles
fl-IO Tumout oe.n ne placement
fl-Ic SCRA
fl-17 SCRA Ctlindsn Rsplacsmert
fl-IS Pins Rose Replacement
fl-IC Medical Equipment 0 nade
fl-iS Malntaln/Oporads Community SEC’s
fl-il Oneathi Sin Ccmprsston
fl-u Poe Alarm Receiclng Equipment
fl-il 1st 5 Truoki n.tu.
fl-id Mnbulanoa

PUBLIC WORKS
PW-l Camons

F-I Punt Machine
F-i Roadside Satety
F-3 Stniplog & 5l~te&SnaA
F4 Equlpmsnt
F-S Vehicles

PW-2 Righwsy Maintonanca
F-S Small Equipment

RReRRENCB ONLT

PY2023 Priority (F) tsp P72023 tamica Impact (Si) Roy
~Orient Enhance
LJAsceosanV Eopand
LJlesinable Maintain

——
25,000 37,900 7,500 M 5,040 7,506 7540 7,500

-ii
10,000 10000 10004
3,500 3,500 M 3,340

———
II

50,000 30000

19,000
33

1,100,000 030,000 230,000 050,000 290,000

06,000 14,000 14,004 17460 1 000 19,

271,000 52,400 32,000 000 000 271,000

19,000 15,000 10000



1151909CR ONLY

FY24-28 Capital Improvement Program
Outlay Plan - General Fund & Enterprise Funds

F-To Guardrail Replacenrent
F-7b Rrldge/Railini Replacements

F-A Large Equipment
F-A Vehicle,

F-IA Public Shade Tree, & Tree Mainter
5W-S Capital Assets

F-Il Road Reconstruction
F-Il Drainage Improvements
F-Il Culvert Improvement
F-14 Sidewalk,- Maintenance
F-IS Vehicle, and Veiny Equipment

SCM Reaional School District

FY2023 Pdodny (P) Key
Urgent

L___J NecessaryjJ Desirable

FY2023 S.rcloe Impact (SI) Icy
Enhance

Ec Eupand
M Maintain

98,000 53,000

961,000 000 : 75,0001

• 30,000
~11.000

30,000
24,500

75.000 300.000

58,000 ~ 58,000 0
225,040 — ~ 225,00’ 0

125,000 125,000 i25,00et 125,00st 500,000

800,000 ::: : : 161,~, 230.000 200.000 200,000 200,040 (161,005’) 600,000

7,925,250 3.703.700 — — 1,S02,500~ 1,014,500 1,215,540 959,500 1,002,00 4,171,5301 4,171,500GENERAL FUND TOTAI 908,794



V. PUBLIC COMMENTS



VI. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT



VII. AD INISTRATION, BUDGET AND POLICY



#1



#2



#3



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CONTROL

COMMISSION
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3, Chelsea, MA 02150

2023 Seasonal Population Increase Estimation Form

City/Town: Lancaster

Date: j Dec 20, 2022

Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission
do Licensing Department
95 Fourth Street, Suite 3
Chelsea, MA 02150

To Whom It May Concern:

Acting under authority contained in M.G.L. Ch. 138, s17, as amended, our Board at a meeting held on

Dec 19, 2022

Date of Meeting
estimated that the temporary increased resident population

of Lancaster

City/Town Name

J , as of July 10, 2023 will be
Estimated Population

This estimate was made and voted upon by us at a meeting called for the purpose, after due notice to each of the
members of the time, place and purpose of said meeting, and after investigation and ascertainment by us of all the
facts and after cooperative discussion and deliberation. The estimate is true to the best of our knowledge and
belief.

The above statements are made under the pains and penalties of perjury.

Very truly yours,
Local Licensing Authorities

F

This certificate must be signed by a majority of the members of the local licensing authority.



#4



Kate Hodges

From:
Sent: Tuesday, December 6, 2022 11:05 AM
To: Kate Hodges
Subject:

Categories: SB Agenda Items

Hi Kate,

I just wanted to inform you that Tom Christopher showed up at my jobsite again today (12/6) on Road, and
from what the homeowner is telling me, he or his wife did not give him permission to be on the property. This is second
time he has done this at this location while I was doing work. As stated in my first complaint to you regarding this situation,
I still believe he is targeting me unfairly due to my opinions and feelings regarding political issues in town.

This type of action and behavior is highly unprofessional and illegal and needs to be addressed. Tom has a long history of
doing this and at some point, it needs to stop. The town, its residents, and the contractors that do work here, should be
able to perform such work on their own property without having the fear of Tom showing up unannounced and inviting
himself to walk around their property taking pictures.

At this point I am considering any and all options to ensure this type of harassment/retaliation behavior towards myself
and my business comes to a stop.

Thank you—



Lancaster Police Department Page: 1
Incident Report 12/07/2022

Incident it: 22LAN-461-OF
Call it: 22-84578

Date/Time ReporLed 12/06/2022 1532
Report Date/Time 12/07/2022 1151

Status Incident Open

Reporting Officer DETECTIVE ANDREW SHAW

Signature _________________________________

# SUSPECT(S) SEX RACE AGE SSN PHONE

CHRISTOPHER, THOMAS J M W

LANCASTER MA 01523-3

Military Active Duty: N
HEIGHT: WEIGHT HAIR: GRAY OR PARTIALLY GRAY EYES BROWN

BODY: MEDIUM COMPLEXION: RUDDY
DOB: PLACE OF BIRTH MASSACHUSETTS

LICENSE NUMBER: ETHNICITY NOT HISPANIC

[APPEARANCE]________________________________________________

GLASSES WORN NO

FATHER S NAME
MOTHER S NAME

OCCUPATION ENV CONSULT

# OFFENSE(S) ATTEMPTED TYPE

LOCATION TYPE: Residence/Home/Apt./Condo Zone LAN - SOUTH SIDE

LANCASTER MA 01523

TRESPASS Misdemeanor
266/120 266 120

CURRED: 12/06/2022 1008

PERSON(S) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE SSN PHONE

REPORTING PARTY M 11

LANCASTER MA 3
DOB

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Home Phone (Primary)

Attachments for 22LAN-461-OF
Description Type
EMAIL PDF

Attachment# 49348D3l 5D9B4DOAAD9675B6FE65OBBE
VIDEO MP4

Attachment4t CB9BF5 68A3084 996879EAD7CEE85A0F5



Lancaster Police Department Page: 1
NARRATIVE FOR DETECTI ANDREW T SHAW

Ref: 22LAN-461-OF

Entered: 12/07/2022 @ 1153 Entry ID: ATS
Modified: 12/07/2022 @ 1435 Modified ID: ATS

On 12 06 2022 I, Detective Andrew Shaw, was working my shift of 0800-1600 Hours. I was utilizing
cruiser

I was advised by Chief Moody that there has been a complaint from a resident regarding trespassing on his
property. Chief Moody advised me that emailed the town regarding Conservation Commission
representative Thomas Christopher trespassing on his property. Chief Moody requested that I call and
speak with him regarding this issue.

At approximately 15:26 Hrs. I called d spoke with him via the telephone. advised me that
he had been at work and noticed someone on his cameras walking c rty. called his who
was currently at home and asked if there was a man on the property. advised him that the man came
to the door, but she did not answer it because she was home alone. [ ecognized this individual as Thomas
Christopher. advised me that this is not the first time Christopher has come onto his property without his
permission.

I asked if he had ever informed Christopher that he is not allowed on the property. Casey stated that
he has not and that he did not think someone would need to tell people they can’t arbitrarily walk around
someone’s property. I advised in the laws governing trespassing in Massachusetts. After my conversation
with , he stated he would post his land and that he would be filling out a notice of no trespass and sending
it to Christopher.

Tasked to send me a copy of the video he had of Christopher and a statement regarding this issue.
stated that he would do this but that the video would o y show Christopher at his door since the other

video was not recording.

On 12 07 2022 did send me a video of omas Christopher coming to the front door of his
house, the time of this video was 10:06 Hrs. on 12 06 2022. also provided me with a statement in this
email. Both the email and the video have been attached to this report.

Detective Andrew Shaw
#530

** Portions of this report have been redacted **



Andrew Shaw

From:
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2022 1:27 PM
To: Andrew Shaw
Subject: FW: Tom Christopher going to front door
Attachments: FRONL.DOOR_2022- 1 2-06T1 0_08_58-0500.mp4

Hi Detective,
Here is Tom at front door at 10:08 AM on 12-6-2022
He Proceeded to go down behind our home to the back barn
Where he was walking around (on our property without permission) and taking pictures.
I saw him on my rear camera and called and she was headed out there to
Speak to him but by the time she got out there he was gone.
My rear camera did not activate on its own and I did not realize I could have
Hit the record button but was too late.
Thanks again,

1



VIII. APPOINTMENTS AND RESIGNATIONS



Kathi Rocco

From: vpetraccapublic@gmail.com
Sent: Wednesday, December 7, 2022 10:01 AM
To: Kate Hodges; Stephen J. Kerrigan
Cc: Kathi Rocco; Kelly Dolan
Subject: Select Board Agenda Item

Hi Kate and Steve,

Re: Kate’s suggestion of Kelly Dolan as Ex Officio Trustee to the Affordable Housing Trust, Kelly joined the Trust’s last
meeting on 12/1/22 and has since confirmed her interest.

I respectfully request that Kelly’s appointment be placed on the upcoming Select Board agenda.

We are grateful for Kate’s on-going contributions as Town Administrator and delighted to welcome Kelly aboard as Ex
Officio Trustee!

Please confirm.

Thanks!
Victoria

Victoria Petracca, Chair
Lancaster Affordable Housing Trust



IX. LICENSES AND PERMITS



Annual License Fee - $100.00
TOWN OF LANCASTER

/9 SELECT BOARD Sel~~’ ce
Prescolt Building, 701 Main Street, Suite 1 Date Received

Lancaster, MA 01523-0293 D.C 06 2’~’~

~. ~ Tel: 978-365-3326 Fax: 978-368-8486
Board of Selectmen

AP ICATIO FOR LIC S

CO VICTUALL R

New Application — Renewal ~_

I, the undersigned, duly authorized by the concern herein mentioned, hereby apply for a Common Victualler’s License, in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 140 of the General Laws.

Applicant’s Full Legal Name: Jennifer Macellari

Applicant’s Legal Home Address: 105 Rowley Hill Road, Sterling, MA 01564

Applicant’s Mailing Address (if different): _______________________________________________________________

Applicant’s Home Telephone Number: _______________ Cell Phone: 508-733-7967 Fax No. _________________

Applicant’s E-Mail Addresses: Primary eJmaceinc~gmail.com Secondary ______________________________

Full Legal Name of the Business Concern: EJMaceINC DBA Sandee’s Restaurant

Full Street Address of the Business Concern: 162 Main Street, Lancaster, MA 01523

Give a complete description of all the premises to be used for the purpose of carrying on the business (e.g. number
of dining rooms, cooking facilities, etc.): I Dining room & I Kitchen separated from each other.

Have you ever applied for or held a Common Victualler’s license? yes
(Yes or No)

If so, in what Town? Lancaster, MA

Did you receive a license? Yes For what year? 2008-2022
(Yes or No)

Has any Common Victualler’s license issued to you in Massachusetts or any other state ever been suspended or
revoked? No

(if yes, please explain in detail)

Attach the following information to the completed application form:

Li Building floor plan showing all seating, bar or lounge area (if applicable), entrances, exits, loading dock or
receiving areas, and other relevant information. Six (6) copies shall be reduced to either 8%” x 11”, or if
applicable, 11”x 17”.

Li Site Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft.) showing all available parkIng, driveways, lighting, and location of trash containers.
Six (6) copies shall be reduced to either 8%” x 11”, or if applicable, 11” x 17”.

L~J Menu or description of food to be served and the manner in which such food shall be served.
Li Zoning Opinion from the Building Commissioner.
Li Planning Board and/or Board of Appeals Decisions (if applicable).

C’o,nmon Victuallers License Application Form Pagelof4



The applicant certifies that all state tax returns have been filed and all state and local taxes have been paid as required by law and
further agrees to comply with the terms of the License and applicable law, and all rules and regulations promulgated thereto. The
Applicant further certifies that the information contained in this application Is true and accurate and also authorizes the Licensing
Authority or its agents to conduct wha r i yes I ation Is necessary to verify the information contained in this application.

j~o~ 12/05/2022

1~ignaIt~re o~p~i~ant~’ Date
~F&xJD#’Required: 2o~ ~/oO3~Y
License Fee must be submitted with this form. Make check payable to Town of Lancaster. Mail
A~jikatiori Form, Workers’ Compensation Affidavit and all required documents, along with check
to: Select Board, Suite 1, 701 Main Street, Lancaster, MA 01523~

NOTICE: The filing of this application confers no rights on the part of the Applicant to undertake any activities until the license has been granted. The
issuance of a license under this section or sections is subject to the Applicant’s compliance with all other applicable Federal, State or local statutes,
ordinances, bylaws, rules or regulations. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to request any additional information it reasonably deems
appropriate for the purpose of determining the terms and conditions of the License and its decision to issue a License. The provisions of G.L. c.152 may
require the filing of a Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit with this application. Failure to file the Affidavit, along with any other required
information and/or documentation, shall be sufficient cause for the denial of the License application.

Common Victuallers License Application Form Page 2of4



The Commonwealth ofMassachusetts

Department oflndustrialAccidents

Office ofInvestigations

Lafayette City Center

2 Avenue de Lafayette, Boston, MA 021114750

www. mass.gov/dia

Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit: General Businesses

Aimlicant Information Please Print Le~ih1v

Business/Organization Name: EJMaceINC DBA Sandee’s Restaurant

Address: 105 Rowley H1N Road

City/State/Zip: Sterling, MA 01564 Phone #: 508-7337967

*My applicant that checks box #1 must also fill out the section below showing their workers’ compensation policy information.
* ‘~lf the cosporate officers have exempted themselves, but the corporation has other employees, a workers’ compensation policy is required and such an
organization should check box #1.

Jam an employer that is providing workers’ compensation insurancefor my employees. Below is the policy information.

Insurance Company Name: Berkshire Hathaway Guard

Insurer’s Address: PD Box AH

City/State/Zip: Wilkes-Ba rre, PA 18703-0020

Policy # or Self-ins. Lic. #EJWC3551 15 Expiration 10/22/2023
Attach a copy of the workers’ compensation policy declaration page (showing the policy number and expiration date).

Failure to secure coverage as required under § 25A of MGL c. 152 can lead to the imposition of criminal penalties of a fine up
to $1,500.00 and/or one-year imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the form of a STOP WORK ORDER and a fme of up to
$250.00 a day against the violator. Be advised that a copy of this statement may be forwarded to the Office of Investigations of
the DIA for insurance coverage verification.

I do hereby er fy, under the pai s andpei lilties perjury that the information provided above is true and correct.

c;~re. / ‘7 1 Date: 12/05/2022
( —~ L- J -

57~33-7967~-”Phone #:

Official use only. Do not write in this area, to be completed by city or town official.

City or Town: #________________________________

Issuing Authority (check one):
1.QBoard of Health 2.Q Building Department 3D City/Town Clerk 4.DLicensing Board
5D Selectmen’s Office 6. QOther

Contact Person:____________________________________________ Phone #:___________________________________

www.mass.gov/dia

Are you an employer? Check the appropriate box:
1. I~1 I am a employer with 16 employees (full and!

or part~time).*
2. C I am a sole proprietor or partnership and have no

employees working for me in any capacity.
[No workers’ comp. insurance required]

3. ~ We are a corporation and its officers have exercised
their right of exemption per c. 152, § 1(4), and we have
no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance required]**

4. C We are a non-profit organization, staffed by volunteers,
with no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance req.]

Business Type (required):
5. C Retail

6. ~J Restaurant/Bar/Eating Establishment

7. C Office and/or Sales (mci. real estate, auto, etc.)

8. C Non-profit

9. C Entertainment

10. C Manufacturing

1 l.C Health Care

12.C Other _______



__—, 5,

AC~~RL7 CERTIflCATE OF LIABILiTY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONtACTNAME
PAYCHEX INSURANCE AGENCY PHONE FAX

IAIC, No, Exti: (AIC, No):
225 Kenneth Drive E-MAIL

Rochester, NY 14623 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A: NorGUARD Insurance Company 31470
INSURED INSURERB:
SANDEE’S
SAN DEE’S INSURER C:

162 Main St INSURERD:

Lancaster, MA 01523-2801 INSURER B:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOVMTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iii~ C tiJ~ OLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ~j~p v~jyç~ POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDIYYYY) ‘MMIDDIYYYYl LIMITS

MMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 0
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMSMADE OCCUR PREMISES (En occurrence) $ 0

~ I MED EXP (Any one person) $ 0PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 0
GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 0

~ F1 PRO- [] LOC PRODUCTS-COMPIOPAGG $ 0POLICY i JECT

— — $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $

(Ba accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED F1 SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED I I NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS ONLY ~ AUTOS ONLY — (Per accidenti $

UMBRELLA LIAB [_j OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

EXCESS LIAB I CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ — $
WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I 0TH

“- STATUTE I I ERAND EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY ~ N
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE F’i EL. EACHACCIDENT $ 100,000

A OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED? NIA EJWC355115 10/22/2022 10/22/2023 -—
(MandatorY in NH) EL DISEASE - BA EMPLOYEE $ 100,000
(1 yes describe under
DES6RIPTION OF OPERATIONS below — — EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AdditIonal RemarKs Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Employees: Full Time: 0; Part Time: 3 Governing Class Description: RESTAURANT NOC
Exclusions:
Jennifer Macellari; Eric Macellari;

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

DATE (MMIDDJYYYY)

12/05/2022

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Select Board ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Suite 1
701 Main Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVEi

Lancaster, MA 01523 ~/~///~

ACORD 25 (2016103)



Annual License Fee - $200.00

APPL C TIO OR LIC NSE

SA EOFMO 0 V ICLES

G.L. c.140, §58

— Class I Class 2 Class 3 Renewal~

Circle all that apply

______ L~c~scc~~ ~

If an association or corporation, state full names of the principal officers:

President V’~cz-~- \cm c-~--~

Secretary -~z~Q_—r ~r~4~p ~-k

Treasurer ~ Y-~t:-i(#~

Are you engaged principally in the business of buying, selling, or exchanging motor vehicles? L_~5S

If so, is your principal business the sale of new motor vehicles? _________________________________________

Is you principal business the buying and selling or exchanging of second hand motor vehicles? _______________

Is your principal business that of a motor vehicle junk dealer? c~

Is your principal business that of a “Repairs”? ___________________________________________________________

Is your principal business that of “Repossession”? C-

Provide a complete description of all the premises to be used for the purpose of carrying on the business:
v_’C~ o~ce ~ t~-~ c~<- —kt,-~~ cJtc lec~o $~c~

‘ ~
- C.~~cbt~-~3 L)’(\~

Are you a recognized agent of a motor vehicle manufacturer? YES _______

If yes, state the name of the manufacturer: ___________________________
Class iii, III License Application Form

TOWN OF LANCASTER
SELECT BOARD

Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Suite 1
Lancaster, MA 01523

Tel: 978-365-3326 (ext. 1201) Fax: 978-368-8486
Email: krocco@lancasterma.net

SELECT FICE
Date Received
DEC ~

Bu~rd ol Selectmen

New Application

1. Name of Concern: C ( ~ -

2. Business Address of Concern: O~EZ, o~Q. ~
3. Is the business an individual, partnership, an association or corporation?

4. If an individual, state full name and residential address:

£~ThCL~*~Th

If a partnership, state full names and residential addresses of partners:

J~C\Q~2~~ ~ ce~j~;~-is ~r’~ ~J~ç ~

c1~

NO



10. Do you have a signed contract as required by Section 58, Class I? YES 1/” NO _______________

11. Have you ever applied for a license to deal in secondhand motor vehicles or parts thereof? YES _____ NO_____

If yes, in what city or town? __________________________________________________________________________

Did you receive a license? YES_____ NO ______ For what year? ____________________________________

12. Has any license issued to you in Massachusetts or~ny other state to deal in motor vehicles or parts thereof ever
been suspended or revoked? YES _____ NO V If yes, please explain: ____________________________

Attach the following documentation the completed application form:

Parking Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft.) showing Building Department-approved parking layout. Six (6) copies shall be
reduced to either 8W’ x 11”, or if applicable, 11” x 17”.
Site Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft.) showing all available parking, driveways, entrances and exits, building location, etc. Six
(6) copies shall be reduced to either 8W’ x 11”, or if applicable, 11” x 17”.
Zoning Opinion from the Building Commissioner.
Surety Bond in the amount of $25,000 executed by a surety company authorized to transact business in
Massachusetts. A separate bond shall be required for each different name under which the dealer conducts his
business.

~ Planning Board and/or Board of Appeals Decisions (if applicable).

THE APPLICANT CERTIFIES THAT ALL STATE TAX RETURNS HAVE BEEN FILED AND ALL STATE AND LOCAL TAXES REQUIRED BY LAW HAVE BEEN PAID
AND AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE TERMS OF ITS LICENSE AND APPLICABLE LAW, AND ALL RULES AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED THERETO. I
FURTHER~CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE AND ALSO AUTHORIZE THE LICENSING
AUTHOR T(~O~ ITS AG TO CONDUCT WHATEVER INVESTIGATION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION.

SI~UN~r T AINS AND PENALTIES OF PERJURY.

___________________________________ DATE SIGNED____________________
INDIVIDUAL, PARTNER OR AUTHORIZED CORPORATE
OfFICER OR APPLICANT

FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (REQUIRED)

License Fee must be submitted with this form. Make check payable to Town of Lancaster. Miii]
Application Form, Workers’ Compensation Affidavit and check to: Select Board, Prescott Building, 701
Main Street, Suite 1, Lancaster, MA 01523.

NOTICE: The filing of this application confers no rights on the part of the Applicant to undertake any activities until the license has been granted. The
issuance of a license under this section or sections is subject to the Applicant’s compliance with all other applicable Federal, State or local statutes,
ordinances, bylaws, rules or regulations. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to request any additional information it reasonably deems
appropriate for the purpose of determining the terms and conditions of the License and its decision to issue a License. The provisions of G.L. c.152 may
require the filing of a Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit with this application. Failure to file the Affidavit, along with any other required
information and/or documentation, shall be sufficient cause for the denial of the License application.

Class J~II, III License Application Form



Annual License Fee -$10000
TOWN OF LANCASTER

~ SELECT BOAR]) Date Received
~ Prescott Building, 701 Main Street; Suite 1

-~ Lancaster, MA01523-0293 ufW 0 ?0~
Tel: 978-365-3326 Fax: 978-368-8486

______________ Board ~f Selectmen

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE
COMMON VICTUALLER

New Application Renewal 2~

I, the undersigned, duly authorized by the concern herein mentioned, hereby apply for a Common Victualler’s License, in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 140 of the General Laws.

Applicant’s Full Legal Name: ~Soc ~c Lc~c~c~’c~ ~

Applicant’s Legal Home Address: ThZZEZ (~kS~.- ~ ~‘L>n-~) ~\k_ L~’~ C”r’4~

Applicant’s Mailing Address (if different): ______________________________________________________________

Applicant’s Home Telephone Number: c:~U~ ~ ~~ell Phone: _____________ Fax No. ________________
~_ ~

Applicant’s E-Mail Addresses: Primary~ (~ ~2~’~econdary ____________________________

Full Legal Name of the Business Concern: ~ ~~

Full Street Address of the Business Concern:~LcD ~cc- \ ~t~ ç’..t~

Give a complete description of all the premises to be used for the purpose of carrying on the business (e.g. number
of dining rooms, cooking facilities, etc.):~ ~ ~ ~~J25L. ~ (~-~‘

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c~cç3~ \~ \~ ~t ‘r~*\~-..

l~. ~ ~ ~ ~ ‘~-~ ~

Have you ever applied for or held a Common Victualler’s license? ~
(Yes orNo)

If so, in what Town? Lc’~

Did you receive a license? ‘-‘\~~-% For what year? ~° ~
(Yes or No)

Has any Common Victualler’s license issued to you in Massachusetts or any other state ever been suspended or
revoked? ~mc~

(If yes, please explain in detail)

Attach the following information to the completed application form:

~ Building floor plan showing all seating, bar or lounge area (if applicable), entrances, exits, loading dock or
receiving areas, and other relevant information. Six (6) copies shall be reduced to either 8%” x 11”, or if
applicable, lix 17”.

~ Site Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft.) showing all available parking, driveways, lighting, and location of trash containers.
Six (6) copies shall be reduced to either 8W’ x 11”, or if applicable, ii” x 17”.

IJ Menu or description of food to be served and the manner in which such food shall be served.
,~ Zoning Opinion from the Building Commissioner.
IJ Planning Board and/or Board of Appeals Decisions (if applicable).

Common Victuallers License Application Form Page 1 of4



The applicant certifies that all state tax returns have been filed and all state and local taxes have been paid as required by law and
further agrees to comply with the terms of the License and applicable law, and all rules and regulations promulgated thereto. The
Applicant further c~rtifi hat the information contained in this application is true and accurate and also authorizes the Licensing
Authority or i~_a~ents to nduct whatever investigation is necessary to verify the information contained in this application.

Sign~t~r&of Applicant Date
Tax ID# Required: E~
License Fee must be submitted with this form. Make check payable to Town of Lancaster. Mail
Application Form, Workers’ Compensation Affidavit and all required documents, along with chock
to: Select Board, Suite 1, 701 Main Street, Lancaster, MA 01523.

NOTICE: The filing of this epplication confers no rights on the part of the Applicant to undertake any activities until the license has been granted. The
issuance of a license under this section or sections is subject to the Applicant’s compliance with all other applicable Federal, State or local statutes,
ordinances, bylaws, rules or regulations. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to request any additional information it reasonably deems
appropriate for the purpose of determining the terms and conditions of the License and its decision to issue a License. The provisions of G.L. c.152 may
require the filing of a Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit with this application. Failure to file the Affidavit, along with any other required
information and/or documentation, shall be sufficient cause for the denial of the License application.

Common Victuallers License Application Form Page 2 of4



The Co,mmrnweafth ofMa stwhus’etts
Department oflitdustrialAcddengs

1 Congress Streei~ Suite 109
Boston, MA 021144017

www~nus&gov/dia
Workers’ Compensation Insnrance Affidavit: General Businesses.

TO BE FILED WITH THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY,
~j~tInformation

Business/Organization Name: t~-~t~;~ ~cs~Q.. t~x~

Address:1c()

City/State/Zip: Lc~c≤~ç\-~- Phone #:___________________________

—

Are you an employer? Check thea proprinte box:
1. I am a employer with j~Q~3_ employees (fill end/

or part-time).~
2. I am a sole proprietor or par~rership and have no

employees working for me in any capsoity.
[No workers~ comp. insurance requiredj

3.0 We are a co~oration and its oficers have exercised
their right ofexemption per c. 152, ~ 1(4), and we have
no employees, [No workers’ comp. insurance required]5’

4.Q We are a non.proflt organization, staffed by volunteers,
with no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance req.] -_

‘Any applicant that ebeob box l~l must also 1111 out the section below showing their workers’ compensation policy mfomiation.
~lf the coiporate officers have exnnpted themselva~ but the corporation has other employees, awockers’ compensation policy is required and such an
organization should chock box #1,

I ear an employer tbet isprovldtogwethers’ eompensaden bw~trastcefor ray a j~oyees. Below Is tire llçy information.
Insurance Company Name: ~ .—

Insurer’s Address: ~t) ~
City!StatefZip:_________________________ ______________________________

Policy # or Self-ins. Lb. #.... ~‘~t9 ~ Expiration Date:i2~J ~
Attach a copy of the workers’ compensation policy declaration page (showing the policy number and expiration data).
Failure to secure coverage as required under Section 25A ofMGL c. 152 can lead to the imposition ofcriminal penalties ofa
fine up to $1,500.00 andJor one-year imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the firm of a STOP WORK ORDER and a fine
of up to $250.00 a day against the violator. Be advised that a copy ofthis statement may be forwarded to the Office of
Investigations ofthejMA o ns cc coverage verification.

Phone#: CV\€) c~S?~ c~jc~

Official use only. Do not write lit this aree, to be completed by city or town official

City or Towm Permit/License It_______________________________

Issuing Authority (circle one)i
1. Board of Health 2. Building Department 3. Cityffown Clerk 4. LicensIng Board 5. Selectmen’s Office
6. Other

~ Contact Pereenrac - Phone It:________________________________

~ ~~.mssagovfdia

Businesa Type (required):
5. ~)Rntail
6. QRestaurant’Bar/Eating Establishment
7. Q Office and/or Sales (mci. real estate, auto, etc.)
8. []Non-profit
9. 0 Entertainment

1O.Q MenuTh~urbng
1 i.Q Health Care

12.0 other



Information and Instructions
Massachusetts General Laws chapter 152 requires all employers to provide worke& compensation for their employees.
Pursuant to this statute, an employee is defined as “...evezy person in the service ofanother under any contract ofhire,
express or implied, oral or written.”

An emplcyer is defined as “an individual, partnership, association, coipozuzion or oth~ legal entity, or any two or more
of the foregoing engaged in a joint enterprise, and including the legal representatives of a deceased employer, or the
receiver or trostee ofan individual, partnership, association or other legal entity, employing employees. However, the
oweer ofa dwelling house having not more than three apartnients and who resides therein, or the occupant ofthe
dwelling house of another who employlpersons to do maintenance, construction or repair work on such dwelling house
or on the grounds or building appurtenant thereto shall not because ofsuch employment be deemed to be an employer.”

MGL chapter 152, §25C(6) also states that “every state or iota) licensing agency shall withhold the Issuance or
renewal of a license or permit to operate a business orto construct buildings In the commonwealth for any
applicant who has not produced acceptable evidence ofcompliance with the Insurance coverage required.”
Additionally, MGL chapter 152, ~2SC(7) states “Neither the commonwealth nor any of its political subdivisions shall
enter into any contract for the performance ofpublic work until acceptahie evidence ofcompliance with the insurance
requirements ofthis chapter have been presented to the contrecting authority.”

Applicants

Please fill out the workers’ compensation affidavit completely, by checking the boxes that apply to your situation and, if
necessaiy, supply your insurance company’s name, address and phone number along with a certificate of insurance.
Limited Liability Companies (LLC) or Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP) with no employees other than the members
or partners, are not required to carry workers’ compensation insurance. ifan LLC or LLP does have employees, a policy
is required. Be advised that this affidavit may be submitted to the Department of Industrial Accidents for confirmation of
insurance coverage. Also be sure to sign and date the affidavit. The affidavit should be returned to the city or town
that the application for the permit or license is being requested, not the Department of Industrial Accidents. Should you
have any questions regarding the law or if you are required to obtain a workers’ compensation policy, please call the
Department at the number listed below. SeIf.insured companies should enter their self.insurance license number on the
appropriate line.

-~--

Ctty or Town Officials

Please be sure that the affidavit is complete and printed legibly. The Department has provided a space at the bottom
ofthe affidavit for you to fill out in the event the Office ofInvestigations has to contact you regarding the applicant.
Please be sure to fill in the permitlllcense number which will be used as a reference number. In addition, an applicant that
must submit multiple permit~licensc applications in any given year, need only submit one affidavit indicating entrant
policy information (if necessary). A copy of the affidavit that has been officially stamped or marked by the city or town
may be provided to the applicant as proof that a valid affidavit is on file for litture permits or licenses. A new affidavit
must be filled out each year. Where a home owner or citizen is obtaining a license or permit not related to any business
or commercial venture (i.e. a dog license or permit to buni leaves etc.) said person is NOT required to complete this
affidavit

The Department’s address, telephone and fax number:

The Commonwealth ofMassachusetts
Department of Industrial Accidents

1 Congress Street
Boston, MA 02114-2017

Tel. # 617-727-4900 ext. 7406 or 1-877-MASSAFE
Fax # 617-727-7749
www.mass.gov/dia

Form Revised 02-23-15



SuRETYI©
An AssuredPartners Agency

Koch Lancaster Inc
700 Old Union Turnpike
Lancaster, MA 01523

3225 Monier Circle, Ste 100
Ranch~ Cordova, CA 9.5742
Toll Free (877)54-2327
CA License #OM07762

Fold Here

BOND # INVOICE # EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE
PB11562506615 273125 11/16/2022 11/16/2023

PRINCIPAL
KOCH LANCASTER INC

OBLIGEE
Registry of Motor Vehicles

CARRIER
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
cdiegej@koch33auto.com
kurt koch 6102539191

BOND DESCRIPTION SAA CODE JOB STATE
Massachusetts - Motor Vehicle Dealer 927 MA

BOND AMOUNT PREMIUM DUE
$25,000.00 $250.00

INVOICE AMOUNT
FEE DESCRIPTION +FEE AMT. $275.00

Processing $25.00

PAYMENT DESCRIPTION -PAY AMT.

1062 9/26/2022 $275.00

NOTES:

PAID 9/26/2022

NET DUE $0.00



Subject Photographs

Subject Photographs

II

Prime Toyota Route 2, 700 Old Union Turnpike, Lancaster, MA CBRE



S~TE LAYOUT

Site Ana~ysis

LAYøU~ AND LANDSQAPE PW4
WADN~A A1ITOMOT

16 CBRE

NOT TO ScALE

• •— .•1 ~

Prime Toyota Route 2, 700 Old Union Turnpike, Lancaster, MA



Improvements Analysis

Improvements Analysis

The fol lowing chart shows a summary of the improvements.

Property Type

Number of Buildings

Number of Stories
Year Built
Gross Buildng Area
Area Breakdown

Office / Showroom
Dealer Service
Paris / Service Reception
Service Bays

Site Coverage
Parking Improvements

Parking Spaces:
Parking Ratio (per 1,000 SF GLA)
Source: Various sources compiled by CBRE

IMPROVEMENTS SUMMARY

Retail (Auto Dealership)

2
2005
40,483 SF

14,909 SF
15,580 SF
9,994 SF
24 Bays + 3 Auto Prep Bays
4.2%
Open Asphalt Along With Unmarked Gravel Areas

465
11.49

The subject is a 1 & 2-story auto dealership operated as Prime Toyota Route 2. The subject is
done out in the early 2 000’s Toyota livery. The building is in average overall condition.

YEAR BU1LT

The subject was built in 2005.

CONSTRUCTION CLASS

Building construction class is as follows:

C - Masonry/concrete ext. walls & wood/steel roof & floor struct, exc. concrete slab
on grade

The construction components are assumed to be in working condition and adequate for the
building.

The overall quality of the facility is considered to be average for the neighborhood and age.
However, CBRE is not qualified to determine structural integriiy and it is recommended that the

client/reader retain the services of a qualified, independent engineer or contractor to determine
the structural integrity of the improvements prior to making a business decision.

FOUNDATION/FLOOR STRUCTURE

The foundation is assumed to be of adequate load-bearing capacity to support the
improvements. The floor structure is summarized as follows:

21 CBREPrime Toyota Route 2, 700 O/d Union Turnpike, Lancaster, MA



:“‘~~~‘ ~ ‘~~ “V”~

7!
¶ /7

-- 7K; 7
-~ -~ --c’:

7!

~ 7
77 ~ !K1’~

- 7K

7 77% / 7! 7
-- ~K~7’ <77:~ ‘K7 7’ ‘~7~

K - - -, - /
-‘ ‘~: “, 7!” -~ -~ ~-~c

~7K K- N

~7~7 7!K7/KK~ - %7~7~ K/K ~rK7K777 K-s

- ‘ ‘7” ~K7/ /7’7!t:7~- 7K ‘ ~
K- ~‘ / -- K~

75. ‘ 7~ ~K: 7KN ~ K” ~/7 ‘K— K~

5 7K-K ~ 7 ~ /7

77 K K

‘-K / - 4/’-~/- — 77<~ -7!_;~//_7!~7!-~~’7! 5’/ ~ ~c K;!~. ~- ~ ~K7~5 ~

K’ -5

K’’

75

- K

7:

7 CJ

/7

K - ~ -

~7K-N/. K

‘K

- K

K K ‘ -
7/ ‘‘K

K -.-- - -



VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES

CBRE
33 Arch S1ree~

&stan Mossochu~effs, 02 ~I ~ 0
T617~9~2-7000

www.cbre.com

Dote of Report: November 24, 2021

Ms. Coshouno Lewis
Commercial Sales Analyst
TOYOTA MQTOR CREDIT cORPORA1ION

RE: Appraisal of: Prime Toyota Route 2
700 Old Union Turnpike
Lancaster, Massachusetts
CBRE, Inc. File No, 21 -047NE-6356.i

Dear Ms. Lewis:

At your request and authorization, CBRE, Inc. has prepared on appraisal of the market value of
the referenced properly. Our analysis is presented ir~ the following.Approisal Report.

The subject is a 40,483 ~uaré foot 1 & 2 story auto deoler~hip on 0 10.97-acre site at 700 Old
Union Turnpike, Lancaster, MA. The subject lies in a tertiary rural area but has good visibility
along Route 2, a major east / west road for North Central Massachusetts and the subjed lies
near three other dealerships built in the past 15 years. The subject was completed in 2005 and is
in average overall condition

Based on the analysis contained in the following report~ the market. voiUO of the. subject is
concluded as follows:

MARKET VALUE CONCLUSION
Appraisal Premise Interest Appraised Date of Value Value Cqnciusiofl

, As Is Fee Simple Estate Ju~e~ 10, 2021 . $9~259,O0P
Compiled by C~RE

The report, in its entireIy~ including all assumptions and limiting conditions, is an inte~r~l part of,
and inseparable from, this letter.

As of the date of value and the d~te of this report, the nation, region, and market area are
impacted by the, COV1D-19 pandemid. This cçuld hove a prolonged effect on maçr~econpmic
conditions, though at this time the length of duration is unknown. The perceived impact. on real
estate varies on. sever~I factors includihg asset class, use, fenancy, and locatiofl, Our analysis
considers available information as of the effective date.

The following appraisal sets forth the most pertinent data gathered, the techniques employed,
and the reasoning leading to the, opinion of value. The analyses, opinions and conclusions were
developed based on, and this’ report has been prepared in conformance with, the guidelines and
recommendations set forth’ in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal ~radice (USPAP~,
and the requirements of the code of Professional Ethics and’ Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice of the Appraisal Institute, Ii also conform~ t~. Title Xl Regulations: and the Financial



November 24, 2021
Page 2

Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcern~nf Act of 1989 (FIRREA) updated in 1994 and further
updated byThe Interagency Appraisal and EVaIuatiôt~ Quidejihes promulgated ih 2.01 0~

The intended use and User of our report are specifically identified in our report as agreed upon in
our contract for services and/or reliance language found in the report. As ~ candit~on to being
granted the status of an intended user, any intended user who has not entered into a written
agreement with CBRE m connection with ~ts use of our report agrees to be bound by the terms
and conditions of the agreement between CBRE and the client who ordered the report. No other
use or user of tiio report i~ permitted by any other party for any othet purpos~e~ Diss~minption af
this report by any party to any non-intended users does .not extend relibnce to any ~u~h party,
and CBRE will not be responsible for any unauthorized u~é of or reliônce upon the report, its
conclusions or contents (or any portion thereof).

It has been a pleasUre to assist you in this assignment. If you have any questions çonc~rn~ng the
analysis, or if CSRE can be. of further service, please contact us.

Respectfully submitted,

C~RE - VALUATION & ADVISORY s~ERvlcEs

John Costello
MA RE Appraiser Trainee License #5035

John P. D~vis, MAI
Director
MA ~ert, General REAppr r#343~
Phone: 617-912-695
Email: jobn4avis@cbre.com

Harris E. Coilins~ MAI, CI~E, FRICS
Executive Vice President
MA Cert. Gen, Appraiser Lic~ #3843
Phone: ~i7-912-6912
Email: Horris.collins@cbre. corn

~%4?~~

~1

Prime Toyota Route 2, 700 Old Union Turnpike, Lancaster, MA CBi~E



Ii

Certification
We certify to the best of our knOwledge arid be1i~f:

1. The st~iements of fact contained in this report ore true and correct.
2. The reported ~nolyses, opinions, arid coticlusions ore limited anti,’ by the reported assumptions and limiting

conditions and ore our personal, impartial and unbiased professiondi analyses, opinions, and conclusions.

3. We hcw~ no present or prospective interest in or bioswith respect to the prpperty thai is the sublect of this report
rind :J~ave no pertortal interest in o~ bias with respect tO the parties inyolved with fhis assignment.

4. Ou~ en~agement in this assignment was not contingent upon developirig or reportin~ predetermined results.
5. Our compentotion for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the de~lopment or repQrting of a

predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client~ the amount of the value opinion, th~
attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related lathe intended use of this
appraisal.

6. This appraisal assignment was not based upon a r~quested minimum valuation,, a specific valuation, or the
approval of a loan.

7. Our analyses, opinions, rind. ~onclusions were developed, arid this report has been p~apared, in conformity with
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, as well as the requirements of the State of Massachusetts

8. The reported analyses1 opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report h.a~ been prepared1 in
conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethies and StondOrd~ of Professional Appraisal
Practice of the Appraisal Institute,

9. The use of this report i~ subject to the r~quiremCnts of the Appraisal InstitUte relating to review by its duty
authorized repres~ntatives.

10. As of the dOte of this report, Harris E. Collins, MAt, CRE, FRICS rind John PL O~vis, MAI haste completed the
continuing education program for D~signqted Members of the Appraisal Institute.

11. Harris E, Collins, MAI, CRE, FRICS artd J~hn costello hove mode on inspection of the property rind John P. DOvis,
MAt has not made a personal inspection ofthe property that it the tubled of thit report.

12, No one provided si~pificariI rertl propertyappraisol dssistqnce tO the .per~ons .~i~niO~ tl~is report.
13. Valuation & Advisory Services operates as an independent economic entily.within CBRE, ln~. Although employees

of other CaRE, Inc. divisions may be contacted ri~ a part of our routine market resed’rch investigations, abtokite
client confidentiality and privacy were maintOinedot all times with regord to this ossfgnmCnt without conflict of
interest.

14 Horns F Callms1 MAt GRE John P DavTs MM, and John Costello have not provided any services as an
~ppraiser or in any other capacity1 regarding the property that is the suble~.t of this report within thç three-year
period immediately preceding acceptance of this~assignment.

Harris E. Colihis, MAt, Cl~E, FRICS
MA Cert. Gen. Appraiser Lb. #3843

\%~

John P. Dovi~, MAt
MA CerL Ceneral REAppraiser #3435

CBRE

John Costello
MA RE Appraiser Trainee License #5035

Prime Toyota Route 2,. 700 Old Union Turnpike, Loncasfer. MA



E~e~itt~ve Summary

Executive S~nrnciry
Property Name

Loeatlon

CIleet

Highest ónd Best U.ie

As If Vacant

A~ Improved

Property Rights Appraised

Date of Report

Date of Inspection

8stimcded ExposUre Time

Estimated Marketing Time

Land Area

Zoning

Improvements

Property Type

Number of Buildings

Number of Stories

Gross Building Area

Year Built

Effective Age

Remutning EcoUomic Life

Condition

Buyer Profile

VALUATION

Land Value

Market V~Iue As Is On JUne ~l ~, 2021
Cost Approoch

Sales Comparison Approach

Insurable Value

Prime Toyota Route 2

700 Old ~Jniort Tumpike,L~nra~ter,.Worc~ster
County, MA 01523

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation

Auto Related / Ratail

Auto Pealershi~

Fee Sirv~l~ Estôt~

November 24, 2021

June 10,2021

3- 9 Months

3 9 Months

1.0~97 AC

Light Industry

Retail (Auto Deal~rshipl

2

40,483 SF

2005

17 Years

28 Years

Average

Owner-User

Tatql
$4i75~000

$9,825,000

$9, I 00,000

S4,~0G,t~O0

Date of ‘Mae

J~jne 10,202T

STRENGTHS, WEAKNESSES, OPPORTUNIT~ES AND THREATS (SWOT)

Strengths/ Opportunities

The subject hats good visibilily from the main east / west highway for Notth Central
Massachusetts.
The subject sells a brand which i~ a I~ader in th& market,

v CSR~

.477,853 SF

Per SF

$9.99

$242.69

S22d,79

$121 ~04

cONCWflE~MARkET VALUE
Appraisal Premise It~PP~ ValUe

As Is ~ Sirtij,ie Estate . S9,250,G00

CompiJ~d by Cttt

Prime Toyota Route 2, 700 Old Union Tu~npike, Lancaster, MA



Zo~inii

Zonhig

The following chart summarizes the subject’s zoning requirements.

ZON~NG SUMMARY
Curren~Z Light Industry
Legally Ccnforming Yes - Special Permit Granted 8/6/2004.
Uses Permitted Motor Vehide Sales, Offkes, Most industrial

Uses, Outdoor Recrèotio~i. Ga~ Stations, Non-
Drive Thru Rèstaurar~ts, Retail Uses, Religious
Uses, Educational Uses, Agricultural Uses

Zoning Change Not likely

Category Zoning Requirement
Minimum Løt Sire 64,000 SF.
Mihin~um Lot Frontage 225 Feet

Maximum Height 40. Feet
Minimum Setbacks

Front Yard 74 Feet
Street Side Yard 30 Feet

ReGr Yard 3O Feet
Parking Reqiiireñients I Spdce per 800 SPot Buildir~ Ai~ea
Subject’s Act~al.Pqrking 465 Sp~ces

Source; Town of Lancaster Zoning Code cnd Subjed

ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSION

The improvements represent a legdly-c~nforming use vi~ special permit. Additionol information

may be obtained from the appropriate gover~meptal àuth~rity. For’ purposes of thI~ appraisal,

CBRE has assumed the information obtained is correct.

26
Prime Toyota Route 2, 700 Old Uriiøn TurnpIke, Lancaster, MA



Annual License Fee - $200.00

‘I
L4A/,~ 4-~ t~n

5. If a partnership, state full names and residential addresses of partners: /‘ F)/9AJ hU≤cJ~/L1 i4’14-h/i~::e’
;i9~~ w A-,/L~ iD~ t-~ T~ MA— ~ ~-h~

6. If an association or corporation, state full names of the principal officers:

President ______

Secretary

Treasurer

7. Are you engaged principally in the business of buying, selling, or exchanging motor vehicles? ________________

If so, is your principal business the sale of new motor vehicles? ___________________________________________

Is you principal business the buying and selling or exchanging of second hand motor vehicles? _______________

Is your principal business that of a motor vehicle junk dealer? __________________________________________

Is your principal business that of a “Repairs”? ___________________________________________________________

Is your principal business that of “Repossession”? ____________________________________________________

8. Provide a complete description of all the premises to be used for the purpose of carrying on the business:

(;AfR/+~,- ~ /~) M’J’ c7~ •LAJlLZ~

9. Are you a recognized agent of a motor vehicle manufacturer? YES

If yes, state the name of the manufacturer:
Class 1,11, III License Application Form

NO)~

TOW OF LANCASTER
SELECT BOARD

Prescott Building, 701 Main Street, Suite 1
Lancaster, MA 01523

Tel: 978-365-3326 (ext. 1201) Fax: 978-368-8486
Email: krocco@lancasterma.net

SELECT ~A1&~&FICE
D3Le Received
DEC uq 7n’~

Board of Selectmen

New Application

AP LIC JO OR L CENS~
SA EO •TOV HICL S

G.L.c.140,~58 \,
— Class I Class 2 Class 3 Renewa~7\

Circle all that apply

1. Name of Concern: -~ 44 7Jt’t’.c T44o,cJ~ CI ~ .4 - . ,. , .~ -

2. Business Address of Concern: / -

3. Is the business an individual, partnership, an association or corporation? LL cZ

4. If an individual, state full name and residential address:

M,~i~1L/ñ 44~$i~



10. Do you have a signed contract as required by Section 58, Class I? YES ______________ NO ______________

11. Have you ever applied for a license to deal in secondhand motor vehicles or parts thereof? YES _____ NO?(

If yes, in what city or town? ______________________________________________________________________

Did you receive a license? YES_____ NO ______ For what year? ____________________________________

12. Has any license issued to you in Massachusetts or~any other state to deal in motor vehicles or parts thereof ever
been suspended or revoked? YES _____ NO )~. If yes, please explain: ____________________________

Attach the following documentation the completed application form:

Parking Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft) sh’wing Building DePartment-approved park~rg layout. Six (6) copies sh~l be
reduced to either 8W x 11”, or if applicable, 11” x 17”.

U Site Plan (scaled 1” = 40 ft.) showing all available parking, driveways, entrances and exits, building location, etc. Six
(6) copies shall be reduced to either 8W x 11 ~, or if applicable, 11” x 17”.

U Zoning Opinion from the Building Commissioner.
Surety Bond in the amount of $25,000 executed by a surety company authorized to transact business in
Massachusetts. A separate bond Ghall be required for each different name uiidei wlik,ii the dedler conducts his
business.

U Planning Board and/or Board of Appeals Decisions (if applicable).

THE APPLICANT CERTIFIES THAT TATE TAX RETURNS HAVE BEEN FILED AND ALL STATE AND LOCAL TAXES REQUIRED BY LAW HAVE BEEN PAID
AND AGREES TO COMPLY WIT THE T RMS OF ITS LICENSE AND APPLICABLE LAW, AND ALL RULES AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED THERETO. I
FURTHER CERTIFY THAT T INFO ATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE AND ALSO AUTHORIZE THE LICENSING
AumoRny OR ITS AGENT TO CON UCT WHATEVER INVESTIGATION IS NECESSARY TO VERIFY THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNED UNDE T E PAl A PENALTIES OF PERJURY.

/i1/~y~ DATE SIGNED_______________
INDIWDUAL, PARTN R OR AUTHORIZED CORPORA,’f’E)
OFFICER ORAPPLICANT~0 —

FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (REQUIRED)

License Fee must be submitted with this form. Make check payable to Town of Lancaster. Mail

Application Form, Workers’ Compensation Affidavit and check to: Select Board, Prescott Building, 701
Main Streot~ Suite 1, Lancaste’~ MA 01523.

NOTICE: The filing of this application confers no rights on the part of the Applicant to undertake any activities until the license has been granted. The
issuance of a license under this section or sections is subject to the Applicant’s compliance with all other applicable Federal, State or local statutes,
ordinances, bylaws, rules or regulations. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to request any additional information it reasonably deems
appropriate for the purpose of determining the terms and conditions of the License and its decision to issue a License. The provisions of G.L. c.152 may
require the filing of a Workers’ Compensation Insurance Affidavit with this application. Failure to file the Affidavit, along with any other required
information and/or documentation, shall be sufficient cause for the denial of the License application.

Class 1,11, Iii License Application Form



The Commtrnweaftli ofMassachitseits
~~ 0’~ t ofkdastrialAc

iCon ~ Sidtelflhl
Boston, 02114-2017

W)VW.nWSS~oV/dia
Workers’ Compensation Ilnaus i cc Affidavit: emil Businesses.

TO BE FILED WITH THE PERMITTING AUrHORITY.
I-~-~ — —---———— ___— - _____ P it

Business/Organ~onName:,~4-~~~~A4 ~pt~~7ii4 i7,,7~ f~j~ktI0

Address: ~/ffl)~ AVi~ --

City/State/Zip: (~~t~ .r M 11- Oi Y~.4 Phone #: g7~ -Q~fT-- 31/ ()
~~1

~A~iy applicant that thecks box ill must also fill out the section below showing their workers’ compensation policy information.
•1f the coi~orate officers have exempted themselves, but the corporation has other emplo~es, a workers’ compensation policy is required and such an
organiratión should shack box 01.

Jam ma enq,loyer that kproWdjag rhers’ c mpeasadon laeaurimcefor my employees. Below Is thepolicy Information.
Insurance Company Name: ——

Insurer’s Address:

City/State/Zip: ( N
Policy # or Self-ins. Lic. # Expiration Date:____________________
Attach a copy of the workers’ compensation policy deds tine page (showIng the policy number end expi tion date).
Failure to secure coverage as r~,,, under Section 25A ofMGL c. 152 can lead to the imposition ofcriminal penalties of a
fine up to $1,500.00 and/or~ imprisonment, as well as civil penalties in the form ofa STOP WORK ORDER and a fine
ofup to $250.00 a day _______ . lator. Be advised that a copy of this statement may be forwarded to the Office of
Investigations of~ aD ______ cc coverage verification.

1 do hereby ce _____ pa as arid ‘—-allies ofperjury làat the inforinalloss provided above Is Imie and correct.

-: I~_. ~

~e#: 9~5~~T1/t?
Official use only. Do not write in this area, to be completed by dty or town official

City or Town: ________________________________Permit/License #______________________________

Issuing Authority (circle one)i
1. Board of . ealtb 2. Building Department 3. City/Town Clerk 4. LicensIng Board 5. Selectmen’s Office
6. Other_____________________

Contact Person:_______________________________________ Phone #:________________________________

Are you nun employer? Check the appropriate box:
I Dl am a employer with employees (flaIl audi

o, part~time).*
2. 1 am a sole proprietor or partnership and have no

employees working for me in any capacity.
[No workers’ comp. insurance required]

3.1] We are a corporation and its officers have exercised
their right ofexemption per c. 152, § 1(4), and we have
no eniployces. [No workers’ comp. insurance required]*~

4.[] We are a nan-profit organization, staffed by volunteers,
with no employees. [No workers’ comp. insurance req.]

Business Type (required): - _______

~. 1]Retaii
6. [JRestauranttBar/Eating Establishment
7. 1] Office and/or Sales (mci. real estate, suto, etc.)

8. []Non-profit
9. 1] Entertainment
io.Q Manufacturing
I i.Q Health Care
12. (~ Other t~L~ ti>

www.mass.govldia



Information and Instructions
Massachusetts General Laws chapter 152 requires all employers to provide worke& compensation lbr their employees.
Pursuant to this statute~ an employee is defined as “...eveiy person in the service ofanother under any contract ofhire,
express or implied, oral or written.”

An emplcyer is defined as “an individual, partnership, association, corporation or oth~ legal entity, or any two or more
of the foregoing engaged in a joint enterprise, and including the legal representatives ofa deceased employer, or the
receiver or trustee ofan individual, partnership, association or other legal entity, employing employees. However, the
owner ofa dwelling house having not more than three apanrnents and who resides therein, or the occupant of the
dwelling house ofanother who employs persons to do maintenance, constructiàn or repair work on such dwelling house
or on the grounds or building appurtenant thereto shall not because of such employment be deemed to be an employer.”

MGL chapter 152, ~25C(6) also states that “every state or local licensing agency shall withhold the Issuance or
renewal ala license or permit to operate a business or to construct buildings In the commonwealth for any
applicant who has not produced acceptable evidence ofcompliance with the Insurance coverage required.”
Additionally, MGL chapter 152, §25C(7) states “Neither the commonwealth nor any of its political subdivisions shall
enter into any contract for the performance ofpublic work until ecceptabia evidence ofco!npliance with the insurance
requirements ofthis chapter have been presented to the contracting authority.”

Applicants

Please fill out the workers’ compensation affidavit completely, by checking the boxes that apply to your situation and, if
necessaiy, supply your insurance company’s name, address and phone number along with a certificate of insurance.
Limited Liability Companies (LLC) or Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP) with no employees other than the members
or partners, are not required to cany workers’ compensation insurance. ifan LLC or LLP does have employees, a policy
is required. Be advised that this affidavit may be submitted to the Department of Industrial Accidents for confirmation of
insurance coverage. Also be sure to sign and date the affidavit. The affidavit should be returned to the city or town
that the application fbr the permit or license is being requested, not the Deparunent of Industrial Accidents. Should you
have any, questions regarding the law or if you are required to obtain a workers’ compensation policy, please call the
Department at the number listed below. Self4nsured companies should enter their self4nsurance license number on the
appropriate line. ______________________________________________________

City or Town Officials
Please be sure that the affidavit is complete and printed legibly. The Departnient has provided a space at the bottom
ofthe affidavit for you to fill out in the event the Office of Investigations has to contact you regarding the applicant.
Please be sure to fill in the permit/license number which will be used as a reference number. In addition, an applicant that
must submit multiple permit: license applications in any given year, need only submit one affidavit indicating current
policy information (ifnecessary). A copy of the affidavit that has been officially stamped or marked by the city or town
may be provided to the applicant as proofthat a valid affidavit is on file for finure permits or licenses. A new affidavit
must befflied out each year. Where a home owner or citizen is obtaining a license or permit not related to any business
or commercial venture (i.e. a dog ifocuse or permit to burn leaves etc.) said person is NOT required to complete this
affidavit.

The Department’s address, telephone and fax number:

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of Industrial Accidents

I Congreas Street
Boston, MA 02114-2017

Tel. # 617-727-4900 ext. 7406 or 1-877-MASSAFE
Fax #617-727-7749
www.mass.gov/dia

Form Revised 02-23-IS



Massachusetts

Western Surety Company
SECOND HAND MOTOR VEHICLE DEALER BOND

(lVIass. Gen. Laws Ann. 140, § 58(c))

Bond No. 64924181

KNOW ALL Pi~RSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: Effective Date: J~uary 8th, 2020

That we, B&M Investments fJBA Modana Motor Group
as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a corporation authorized to do surety business in the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto persons who purchase a vehicle from the
Principal and who suffer loss on account of a breach of the condition of this bond described below, in the sum of not to
exceed TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($25,000.00), for the payment of which well and truly to
be made, we bind ourselves and our legal representatives, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the Principal is a second hand motor vehicle dealer and is required to furnish a bond or equivalent proof of
financial responsibility pursuant to Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. 140, § 58(c)(1).

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if the Principal shall pay the amount of actual
damages, not to exceed the amount of this bond, to any person who purchases a vehicle from the Principal and who
suffers loss on account of: (a) the Principal’s default or nonpayment of valid bank drafts, including checks drawn by the
Principal for the purchase of motor vehicles; (b) the Principal’s fathu~e to deliver, in conjunction with the sale of a motor
vehicle, a valid motor vehicle title certificate free and clear of any prior owner’s interests and all liens, except a lien
created by or expressly assumed in writing by the buyer of the vehicle; (c) the fact that the motor vehicle purchased from
the Principal was a stolen vehicle; (d) the Principal’s failure to disclose the vehicle’s actual mileage at the time of sale;
(a) the Principal’s unfair and deceptive acts or practices, misrepresentations, failure to disclose material facts or failure
to honor a warranty claim or arbitration order in a retail transaction; or (I) the Principal’s failure to pay off a lien on a
vehicle traded in as part of a transaction to purchase a vehicle when the Principal had assumed the obligation to pay off
the lien, then this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, that recovery against this bond may be made only by a person who obtains a final judgment in a court of
competent jurisdiction against the Principal for an act or omission on which this bond is conditioned, if the act or
omission occurred during the term of this bond. No suit may be maintained to enforce any liability on this bond unless
brought within one (1) year after the event giving rise to the cause of action. This bond shall cover only those acts and
omissions described above. The Surety shall not be liable for total claims in excess of the bond amount, regardless of
the number of claims made against this bond or the number of years this bond remains in force.

This bond shall be continuous and may be cancelled by the Surety by giving thirty (30) days’ written notice of
cancellation to the municipal licensing authority at

st :a: U.S. Mail.

Dated this 7th~ day of~ January ,_2Q20.

B&M Investments DBA Modena
Motor Group ~Principal

WESTERN TY COM1) , Surety

By:Form F6333-7-2003 Paul P. Brtzflat,, nior Vice President



Western Surety Company
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Dakota, and

authorized and licensed to do business in the States of Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut,
Delaware, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia. Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine,
Maryland, Massachusetts Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey,
New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina,
South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, and the United
States of America, does hereby make, constitute and appoint

Paul T. Bruflat of.~ Sioux Fal]
State of ~_.sn~tJ~..nalc~i- its regularly elected V~ cr~jd~~j
as Attorney-in-Fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred upon him to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on
its behalf as Surety and as its act and deed, the following bond:

One Second Hand Motor Vehicle Dealer

bond with bond number 64~924181

for B&M InVestments D~ Modena Motor Gr~o~p
as Principal in the penalty amount not to exceed: $ 25,000.00

Western Surety Company further certifies that the following is a true and exact copy of Section 7 of the by-laws of Western Surety Company
duly adopted and now in force, to-wit:

Section 7. All bonds, policIes, undertakings, Powers of Attorney, or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate
name of the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the
Board of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint
Attorneys-in-Fact or agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies, or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate seal is
not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The signature of any
such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile.

in Witness Whereof, the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY has caused these presents to be executed by its
~ with the corporate seal affixed this ....._ZLth~ day of Jan~ugry

2020

ATrEST ~4.~rr;~4

L. Nelson, Assistant Secretary Paul T Bruflat, Vice President

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ~

COUNTY OF MINNEHAHA J as -

On this _~3 th day of~ __~ 02 0~_, before me, a Notary Public, Personally appeared
_.__~au1 T. Bruflat ~and L. Nelson
who, being by me duly sworn, acknowledged that they signed the above Power of Attorney as -. ‘~i~ce, P~esicIent
and Assistant Secretary, respectively, of the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, and acknowledged said instrument to be the
voluntary act and deed of said Corporation.

+
J.MOHR

QMy Conujijasion E:’:pjres June 23, 2021 NotaryPublic
To validate bond authenticity, go to ~> Ownei.fObljge~ Services > Validate Bond Coverage.

Form F1975-1-2016



CNA SURETY

SURETY BOND TRANSMJTT~

Agent: Please deliver this Transmittal to the bond principal and its owners. You may keep a copy for
your records.

BOND INFORMATION

Bond Number: 64924181

Principal/Bondholder: ~&M Investments DBA Modena Motor group
Address: (Address line 1) 2 0 a evlew Avenu

(address line 2)
(City, State. Zip) D~acut ~ 01826

Effective Date: J~n~a~y 8th, 2020
Anniversaiy DateJ~u~y8th~ 2021
~ Q~er
Bond Amount
Writing Company: Western Surety Company

Agent: (name) C~a~y Insurance, Inc.
(Address line 1) 226 Causew~v SLreet, Ste. 302
(address line 2)
(City, State,~

Premjum;~ $250.00

PROVISIONS

The submission of the application for this Bond, along with subsequent execution of the surety bond by
the Bond Principal and its owners, authorizes the Company to obtain a credit report on the Bond
Principal and its owneis. The Company reserves all rights, legal remedies and duties associated with
this and any other bonds issued as a result including, but not limited to, the right to handle or settle any
claim or suit in good faith, and the Company’s decisions shall be binding on the Bond Principal and its
owners. These provisions shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of any other rights the Company may
have.

NOTE TO BOND PRINCIPAl.. AND ITS OWNERS: A surety bond is not insurance. You remain
responsible for performing or fulfilling the underlying obligations covered by your surety bond. Please
keep a copy of this transmittal page. but do not attach it to the original bond or file the Transmittal page
with the Obligee.

Form P9539-3-2016



X. NEW BUSINESS



XI. COMMUNICATIONS



Kathi Rocco

From: Heather <hlennon@earthlink.net>
Sent: Thursday, December 8, 2022 8:51 AM
To: Steve Kerrigan; Jason A. Allison; Alix Turner
Cc: Kate Hodges; Kathi Rocco
Subject: JOAN RICHARDS TO BE LEAVING THE LANCASTER HISTORICAL COMMISSION
Attachments: WE BID FAREWELL TO JOAN RICHARDS.docx

Dear Select Board, Town Administrator and Executive Secretary,

Joan Richards will be leaving the Historical Commission soon as she is moving away from Lancaster.

Please see the attached article outlining her service to Lancaster. I think it would be very appropriate
to have her years of service acknowledged at your next upcoming meeting of the Select Board.

Thank you very much for your thoughtful consideration.

Best,

Heather Len non, LHC Chairperson

1



WE BID FAREWELL TO JOAN RICHARDS

Joan Richards, whose name in Lancaster is practically synonymous with the
Lancaster Historical Commission (LHC) and Lancaster Historical Society (LHS),
has often been the first smiling face seen and the first friendly voice heard by those
who attend programs and events sponsored by the two groups. Her outgoing
nature and gift of hospitality are always apparent.

If you have ever attended an LHC or LHS meeting, you soon become aware of
Joan’s knowledge of history in general and local history in particular. As the
secretary for both groups, Joan is always careful to keep the meetings on track - -

not only according to Robert’s Rules ofOrder but also according to the bylaws.
Because she has a long memory of past happenings in town, she has been
frequently called upon to inform current members as decisions are made moving
into the future. Joan has lived in Lancaster since 1970, and, ever since then, she has
been an active and involved member of the community.

In November, 1992, the Lancaster Select Board (SB) appointed Joan to the LHC as
a full member. She held this position for about a year but then resigned. Shortly
thereafter, Joan was hired as the LHC Office Coordinator, a position she held for
many years. The office was a busy place but Joan always took on the workload
with positive energy and enthusiasm. She did research, wrote reports and grants,
handled correspondence and was a member of several committees -- all in the
interest of preserving and promoting Lancaster history.

In October, 2010, the Lancaster SB members appointed Joan to the LHC as an
associate member. Then, in 2016, she became a full member. As a secretary for
the LHC and the Executive Board of the LHS, she has always kept up with the
ongoing secretarial tasks that came her way.

We congratulate Joan on a job well done for the past thirty years! And, we wish
her, and her husband Jim, every success as they begin a new life-time chapter in a
new location.



XII. ON GOING PROJECTS & OLD BUSINESS


